
CITY OF VERO BEACH, FLORIDA 
SEPTEMBER 15, 2015  6:00 P.M.      

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
CITY HALL, COUNCIL CHAMBERS, VERO BEACH, FLORIDA 

 
The invocation was given by Pastor Michael Ashburn of Global Fire Church of Vero 
Beach followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the flag. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

A. Roll Call 
 
Mayor Richard Winger, present; Vice Mayor Jay Kramer, present; Councilmember Pilar 
Turner, present; Councilmember Amelia Graves, excused absence and Councilmember 
Randy Old, present  Also Present:  James O’Connor, City Manager; Wayne Coment, 
City Attorney and Tammy Vock, City Clerk 
 
2.         PRELIMINARY MATTERS 
 

A. Agenda Additions, Deletions, and Adoption 
 
Mrs. Tammy Vock, City Clerk, requested that item 9-A) be added to the agenda 
“Insurance and Indemnification Language for Outside Vendors.” 
 
Mr. Kramer made a motion to adopt the agenda as amended.  Mr. Old seconded the 
motion and it passed unanimously. 
 

B. Proclamations 
 
None 
 

C. Public Comment 
 
1) Mrs. Shotsi LaJoie to discuss proposed boat house site at MacWilliams Park 
 
Mrs. Shotsi LaJoie gave a Power Point presentation (attached to the original minutes) to 
discuss the proposed boat house site at MacWilliams Park. 
 
Mayor Winger commented on the benefits of rowing that have been proven.  He 
suggested that they use the same lease format that the City used for the Dog Park. 
 
Mr. James O’Connor, City Manager, agreed that was a good model to follow.  He said in 
conversations that he has had with The Rowing Club he has told them that the City would 
put a timeline in the lease (2-3 years) for permits to be issued and construction to begin.  
He said that staff wholeheartedly supports this project and feels that this is a good place 
for it and has no plans to use this piece of property. 

Page 1  CC 9/15/15 
 



 
Mr. Winger stated that he also wholeheartedly supports the project.  He noted in the 
Power Point presentation it talks about a dock.  He hoped that the public would be able to 
use this dock.  He said since this is public land, he would not want to restrict the public 
from using it. 
 
Mr. Chris Ryan, Rowing Club Fundraising Committee member, said that he does not see 
that being an issue.   
 
Mayor Winger had no problem with the City Manager and the City Attorney working 
with the Rowing Club in coming up with a lease to use this property. 
 
Mrs. Turner congratulated the Rowing Club for their successful program and what a great 
asset it is for Vero Beach.  She requested that the City Attorney prepare a lease for the 
Rowing Club to use this piece of property. 
 
Mr. Old commented that this was true testimony that the Rowing Club said they were 
going to put a plan together for this project and they have done it. 
 
Mr. Kramer was excited to see this project roll out and said it will be fun watching it 
happen. 
 
It was the consensus of the Council to negotiate a lease with the Rowing Club. 
 
2)  Col. Anthony Young to invite everyone to the National POW/MIA 

Recognition Day on September 18, 2015 at 6:30 p.m. 
 
Col. Anthony Young invited the Council and the public to attend the National POW/MIA 
Recognition Day on September 18, 2015 at 6:30 p.m. at Veterans Memorial Island 
Sanctuary. 
 
Mr. Richard Gilmore, Mayor of the City of Sebastian Florida, reported that the Indian 
River County Lagoon Coalition (cities including Vero Beach, Sebastian and Fellsmere) 
were approved to be members of the Indian River Lagoon Council.  He said the next IRL 
Council meeting will be held on October 9th and they will have a seat at the table.  He 
will be the Coalition’s representative attending the meetings and if he cannot make it then 
Mayor Susan Adams from Fellsmere will attend the meeting and if she cannot make it 
then Mayor Winger will be asked to attend.  He said that the IRL Council has hired an 
Executive Director and anticipates only having to have four (4) employees hired to run 
the Lagoon Council.  They will be discussing how to bring about each project that the 
different cities in Indian River County want to champion to the Council. 
 
Mr. Joseph Guffanti talked about the Orlando Utilities Commission (OUC) contract.  He 
said that he has not read the draft amendment in its entirety but referred to page 3, Article 
II of the document, which he read. He said anyone in the room could stop him by raising 
their hand if they feel that he says something that is not true.  He said any reasonable 

Page 2  CC 9/15/15 
 



person would conclude that since OUC wants this it is an asset.  His understanding of this 
contract was that it was going to be retroactive to sometime in the year 2008.  He would 
then assume that the tendering of the gas entitlement is going to also go back to the year 
2008.  He does not see anywhere that this item is extracted from the contract.  He knows 
of no place in this contract where it says that the City of Vero Beach is not liable for the 
value that Vero Beach received.  He explained what he was saying is that they have an 
asset, that goes back eight (8) years.  He asked whatever they benefited from this asset do 
they have to turn it over to OUC.  He would think that they would have to do that.  He 
feels that Council should know what this asset is worth and what they are exposed to.  He 
said this contract is raw garbage and the public is going to suffer if it is approved. 
 
Ms. Bonnie Dickerson stated that she was attending tonight’s meeting as a representative 
of a lot of businesses that are located around US1.  She said that there have been influxes 
of people in this community who are on their streets panhandling.  She has been in touch 
with the Police Chief, and undercover agents and they have done a wonderful job 
patrolling this area, but their hands are tied with certain things.  She said that there are a 
lot of cities that do not allow panhandlers and that is what she would like to see in this 
City.  She felt with these panhandlers the crime rate in this area is going up.  When the 
children go back to school they should be able to walk to school safely, which is not 
possible in this area.  The only news she wants to hear is that Vero Beach is a happy 
place to live.  She is asking for help because this has escalated to the point where she has 
to lock her door.  She reiterated that the Police Department is doing a fantastic job, but 
they are working with limited funds.  She said it was not the homeless she is worried 
about it is the drug addicts.  She asked Council to please make panhandling illegal.   
 
Mr. Old asked why there has been such an influx over the last few weeks.   Ms. 
Dickerson explained that a lot of things have happened in Ft. Pierce that has moved these 
people to this area.   
 
Mr. O’Connor stated that the Police Chief is aware of the situation and has been working 
on it. 
 
Ms. Dickerson commented that the sign holders are getting aggressive.   
 
Mr. O’Connor said that staff would look at their Ordinances to see how they can 
strengthen them.   
 
Mr. Ken Daige stated that if there is anything they can do with these panhandlers and 
have it eliminated that would be helpful.  He agreed there are some individuals that are 
aggressive and want money.  A lot of these people have mental issues and they are not 
always nice.  When the Rowing Club project was being discussed Council heard from 
some nice people.  He was happy to hear that the facility would be open to the public and 
he liked the idea of using the Dog Park lease as a model.  He expressed that the Dog Park 
is working.  The organization has met the requirements that the City asked for and the 
public can use the Park without paying any dues.  Also the lease is not a long lease, but it 
protects the City.  Mr. Daige brought up the recent charrette that was held on Saturday at 

Page 3  CC 9/15/15 
 



the Heritage Center.  He said there were over 100 people that attended.  He thanked the 
Elected Officials who were at the charrette and said that the people attending appreciated 
that they stopped by.  The consensus of the charrette is that people are looking for more 
green space and parking and also that waterfront property is very limited. 
 
3. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
1. Regular City Council Minutes – September 1, 2015 
2. Special Call City Council Minutes – September 3, 2015 
3. License Agreement #2015-LA-0258 – Phillip & Allyson Barth – Dock 

& Boatlift constructed on City-Owned Submerged Lands – 21 Park 
Avenue 

4. Renewal of City of Vero Beach Health Insurance Plan 
5. Renewal of Annual Service Contract – Advanced Control Services 
6. Emergency Purchase Report – Electric Utility Repairs 
7. Recommendation of Award – Bid 200-15/CSS – Emergency Food 

Services 
8. License Agreement #2015-LA-0252 – Temporary Placement of 

Propane Tanks – Blue Agave, LLC – 1979 14th Avenue 
 

Mrs. Turner pulled item 3-4) off of the consent agenda.  
 
Mr. Kramer made a motion to adopt the consent agenda as amended.  Mayor Winger 
seconded the motion and it passed unanimously. 
 
Mrs. Turner stated that this item is the renewal of the Vero Beach Health Insurance Plan.  
She said the recommendation was to continue with United Healthcare, which is a 4.3% 
increase.  She asked why they didn’t consider Aetna, which is a 1.8% decrease. 
 
Mr. O’Connor said because in one year Aetna would increase the premiums by 14.7%. 
 
Mrs. Turner noted that Cigna was only a 0.7% increase. 
 
Mr. O’Connor anticipated that if they went with Cigna there also would be a substantial 
increase next year.  He said if you start changing health insurance carriers every year they 
will find themselves in a very high cost class.  He felt the 4.3% was a very reasonable 
increase.  The City’s consultant, who is Willis, recommended that the City stay with 
United Healthcare. 
 
Mrs. Turner made a motion to approve the renewal of the City of Vero Beach Health 
Insurance Plan to United Healthcare.  Mr. Kramer seconded the motion and it passed 
unanimously. 
 
4.         PUBLIC HEARINGS      

(Legislative) 

Page 4  CC 9/15/15 
 



A) An Ordinance of the City of Vero Beach, Florida, amending the Land 
Development Regulations Part II of the Code of the City of Vero Beach, 
relating to Medical Marijuana Dispensaries; Providing for Conflict and 
Severability; Providing for an Effective Date. – Requested by the Planning 
and Development Director 

 
Mayor Winger read the Ordinance by title only. 
 
Mr. Tim McGarry, Planning and Development Director, was at tonight’s meeting to 
answer any questions that Council had regarding this Ordinance. 
 
Mayor Winger opened the public hearing at 7:22 p.m. 
 
Mr. Ken Daige and Mrs. Debra Daige both requested to speak regarding the medical 
marijuana dispensaries.  They toured the area to see who was living close to where these 
dispensaries could be located.  Some of the homes are older and could possibly be 
eligible to be on the historic register.  There are people that live in area with the M-
zoning and the Ordinance states that the medical marijuana dispensary will not be located 
within 1,000 feet of any school, child daycare facility, public park, or other existing 
medical marijuana dispensaries or within 500 feet of any residentially zoned property.  
Their concern is allowing these dispensaries to go in this close to where someone is 
living.  These homeowners should be given the same protection as any other person 
living in a residential district.   
 
Mr. Daige commented that in the Ordinance it talks about protecting people.  He spoke 
about this at the last public hearing that was held and referred to the minutes on page 8, 
where he read some excerpts on comments that he had made at that meeting.  Also, at 
that meeting, Mr. McGarry stated that residential dwellings were not allowed in this 
zoning.  Mr. Daige said that some of the zoning throughout the City has changed.  They 
(Mr. & Mrs. Daige) showed pictures of different dwellings where people are living in this 
zoning (on file in the Clerk’s office).  He brought up the POI zoning and said that it has 
failed in many areas. 
 
Mrs. Daige expressed that she lives in RM-10/12 zoning, which allows for apartments.  
She said there are older homes in her neighborhood where a lot of people have purchased 
these homes and fixed them up instead of turning them into apartments.  She mentioned 
that people are starting to go back to the Downtown area and some of these areas are 
included in the Downtown District.  She brought up the proposed Arts District and 
commented on how many people are showing an interest in this area.  She continued by 
doing the slide presentation that showed a lot of homes and an apartment complex where 
families live.  This apartment complex (Ferns Rooming House) is located right next to 
the Police Department on 10th Avenue.  They just wanted to make Council aware of what 
is out there and hoped that they would do all they could for people living in these areas.  
From what they have learned about these institutions they have to do everything they can 
to protect the neighbors.   
 

Page 5  CC 9/15/15 
 



Mrs. Daige expressed to Council that they were not telling Council not to do this.  But, 
just felt that there has to be a better solution.  She asked that more thought be put into it.  
She felt that maybe the facility could be placed in a more assessable area. 
 
Mayor Winger closed the public hearing at 7:38 p.m., with no one else wishing to be 
heard. 
 
Mr. McGarry agreed that there are residents nearby where these dispensaries would be 
permitted, but he tried to come up with a solution to keep them off of the major traveled 
roads.  In order for a dispensary to be approved a conditional use would have to be 
granted and there are a lot of conditions placed on obtaining a conditional use.   
 
Mrs. Turner commented that they went through this process over a year ago and by 
having an Ordinance in place they will be prepared if the State legislature restricts local 
governments from regulating medical marijuana facilities through its zoning and land use 
powers. 
 
Mrs. Turner made a motion to approve the Ordinance.   
 
Mr. Kramer asked if notice is given to the area property owners if a dispensary wants to 
go into their neighborhood. 
 
Mr. McGarry explained anyone living within 500 feet of the property is notified.  Any 
applications will also have to go through a quasi-judicial hearing process.   
 
Mr. Kramer brought up the apartment complex where children are living.  Mr. McGarry 
said that would be something to look at during the approval process. 
 
Mr. McGarry told Council that if they don’t want to move forward on this tonight then he 
needs some direction on how they want him to proceed. 
 
Mr. Wayne Coment, City Attorney, explained that dispensaries will be regulated by the 
State and if the City doesn’t specify an area where they would be allowed then they could 
open up any place, such as a doctor’s office or pharmacy.  By adopting this Ordinance, it 
puts the City in a stronger and more favorable position if the State legislature decides to 
partially or fully vest local zoning ordinances regulating medical marijuana.  He said at 
least they would be grandfathered in. 
 
Mayor Winger suggested tabling this Ordinance until their next meeting.  He did question 
what happens then.   
 
Mrs. Turner pointed out that they need to give staff some direction on what they will 
accept if they table this tonight. 
 
Mr. Old commented that he was the new guy on the block and not real familiar with all of 
these zoning issues.   

Page 6  CC 9/15/15 
 



 
Mr. Kramer had a problem with the geographics.  He questioned if there was an area to 
put these dispensaries that did not involve residential homes. 
 
Mayor Winger made a motion to table discussion of this Ordinance until their second 
meeting in October giving staff time to bring other potential solutions forward.  Mr. Old 
seconded the motion. 
 
Mr. McGarry stated that he would go back and look for other alternatives. 
 
The Clerk polled the Council and the motion passed 3-1 with Mr. Old voting yes, Mrs. 
Turner no, Mr. Kramer yes, and Mayor Winger yes. 
 
5. RESOLUTIONS (PUBLIC HEARING NOT REQUIRED)  
 
A) A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Vero Beach, Indian River 

County, Florida, expressing support for continuation of the Indian River 
County Local Government Infrastructure one-cent sales surtax discretionary 
sales surtax authorized pursuant to Section 212.055, Florida Statutes; 
Providing for an Effective Date. – Requested by Indian River County 

 
Mayor Winger read the Resolution by title only. 
 
Mayor Winger opened the public hearing at 7:46 p.m. 
 
Mr. Dylan Reinhold, County Attorney, was at tonight’s meeting to talk about the one-
cent sales surtax. He explained that the Florida Statutes authorizes a County discretionary 
sales surtax up to one-cent for a period of up to 15 years, if approved by the voters of the 
County, for the funding of infrastructure of the County and municipalities within the 
County.  The voters of Indian River County approved the one-cent discretionary sales 
surtax for the period of 15 years at a referendum held on March 14, 1989 and in 2002, the 
voters of Indian River County approved an extension of the one-cent discretionary sales 
surtax until December 31, 2019.  He said before taking the issue to the voters, the Board 
of County Commissioners wanted to express their support of extending the tax and also 
seek support from the municipalities within Indian River County.  He said the County 
Commission plans to put this item on the November, 2016 ballot.  He was told by Mr. 
Jason Brown, Indian River County Finance Director, that roughly $2 million dollars has 
been distributed to the City of Vero Beach for some of their infrastructure projects. He 
hoped that the City Council would support this Resolution. 
 
Mayor Winger closed the public hearing at 7:47 p.m., with no one else wishing to be 
heard. 
 
Mr. Kramer made a motion to approve the Resolution.  Mayor Winger seconded the 
motion and it passed 3-1 with Mr. Old voting yes, Mrs. Turner no, Mr. Kramer yes, and 
Mayor Winger yes. 

Page 7  CC 9/15/15 
 



 
B) Resolution of the City Council of the City of Vero Beach, Florida, amending 

Section 3.11 “Discrimination” of the City of Vero Beach Personnel Rules; 
Providing for Conflict and Severability; Providing for an Effective Date. – 
Requested by the Human Resource’s Director 

 
Mayor Winger read the Resolution by title only. 
 
Mr. O’Connor reported by passage of this Resolution it will bring their personnel rules in 
line with the Federal law. 
 
Mayor Winger opened and closed the public hearing at 7:51 p.m., with no one wishing to 
be heard. 
 
Mr. Kramer made a motion to approve the Resolution.  Mrs. Turner seconded the motion 
and it passed 4-0 with Mr. Old voting yes, Mrs. Turner yes, Mr. Kramer yes, and Mayor 
Winger yes. 
 
6.  PUBLIC NOTICE ITEMS 
 
None 
 
7.         CITY CLERK’S MATTERS       
 
None 
 
Mrs. Turner brought up the vacancy on the Finance Commission and the Utilities 
Commission.  Both, Mr. Old and Mayor Winger said that they were working on 
appointing someone to those positions.  The Clerk briefly went over some of the other 
vacancies that they have on their other Boards/Commissions. 
 
8.         CITY MANAGER’S MATTERS 
 
A) Tentative Agreement between the City of Vero Beach and Teamsters Local 

Union No. 769 for a Collective Bargaining Agreement 
 
Mr. Jason Odom, Outside Attorney with Gould, Fennel, and Cooksey, P.A., stated that 
the Teamsters Union did have a ratification vote on both contracts, one for the Bluecollar 
Unit and the other for the Clerical Unit.  He is happy to present both contracts to the City 
Council and urge their approval of them tonight.  He wanted to go over a few of the 
highlights of the agreements with Council.  He said both contracts will be three (3) year 
contracts, resulting in “labor peace.”  The most significant strength to these agreements is 
that the City retains all of its previously achieved economic goals, such as limiting 
holiday pay, freezing annual and sick leave usage, limiting health and insurance 
exposure, and perhaps the most important, freezing the defined benefit plan and replacing 
it with a defined contribution plan.  The City accomplished the 3% pay increase that 

Page 8  CC 9/15/15 
 



Council gave direction on.  He recalled that he did come to Council on how this could be 
allocated, which was accomplished and it amounted to about a $25,000 savings for this 
fiscal year because the increases do not take effect until January 1, 2016.  He said overall 
both agreements do maintain all of Council’s goals that they have been looking at over 
the last couple of years.  He urged Council to support ratification of both contracts.  
 
Mayor Winger asked Mr. O’Connor if a vote should be taken on this and does he open 
the meeting up for public comments. 
 
Mr. O’Connor agreed that this should be opened up for public comment.  He said this is 
an item that he is asking Council to vote on.  He noted that this is the first time since he 
has been employed with the City that they have agreed to a multi-year contract.  He was 
personally very proud of the City’s Negotiation Team who were able to pull together a 
three (3) year contract and there was a unanimous vote from the Teamsters on both of 
these contracts.  
 
Mayor Winger asked if there was anyone wishing to speak from the public on this item.  
There was no one in the audience wishing to speak on this item. 
 
Mayor Winger made a motion that both contracts be ratified by the City. Mr. Kramer 
seconded the motion. 
 
Mrs. Turner stated that she was happy to see this three year (3) agreement and 
commended everyone involved in bringing it forward.  However, her objection to this 
contract is still when they changed to defined contribution they went up to a 9% 
contribution.  She felt that was too much of a burden placed on their taxpayers so she will 
not vote in favor of this. 
 
The motion passed 3-1, with Mrs. Turner voting no. 
 
Mayor Winger asked Mr. O’Connor with the change in garbage collection that is 
occurring in Indian River County effective October 1st, will there be any changes for the 
City. 
 
Mr. O’Connor explained everything in the County will remain the same except for the 
singling recycling process.  He said that their residents will be receiving a large bin for 
their recycling products. The City residents’ garbage pickup day remains the same as it 
always has been.   
 
Mrs. Turner asked Mr. O’Connor to give an update on the stormwater utility. 
 
Mr. O’Connor reported that the Awarding of the Contract and the Scope of the Contract 
will be brought to Council at their first meeting in October. 
 
Mrs. Turner commented on the Electric Optimization Study Report.  She noted that the 
City received it on September 2nd and it was not distributed to the Council until she made 

Page 9  CC 9/15/15 
 



a public request for it.  She said when they started this process of the Optimization Study 
they were told they would see great savings.  What they are seeing from this study is that 
they will have to invest a lot more money in order to keep their utilities operating. 
 
Mr. O’Connor reported that there will be two (2) more reports coming and then in 
January the consultant will make a formal presentation to the City Council.  Mrs. Turner 
noted she did not receive a cover memo to the Optimization report and requested it be 
distributed. 
 
Mayor Winger asked if there has been a joint Finance and Utilities Commission meeting 
set to discuss the amended OUC contract. 
 
Mr. O’Connor stated that if they receive the OUC contract then the joint meeting would 
be set for October 5th, which is the Monday before the City Council meeting held on 
Tuesday.  He knows that there has been communication between OUC and Mr. Wright, 
but they have not received the final contract yet.  He said before the contract comes 
before the Council, both the Finance and Utilities Commission will have reviewed it.  
 
Mrs. Turner asked if the stormwater utility scope of work will go before the Utilities 
Commission before it comes before the City Council.  Mr. O’Connor said that he would 
make sure that it does. 
 
Mr. O’Connor reported that the City will be helping the Veterans Council in an event that 
they are having at Gifford Park.  He said they have requested permission to use one of the 
City’s stages. 
 
It was noted that the City Council Special Call meeting to hear two appeal cases has been 
set for September 29th at 9:30 a.m. 
 
9.         CITY ATTORNEY’S MATTERS 
 

A) Add on Item – Insurance and Indemnification Language for Outside 
Vendors 

 
Mr. Coment explained that the Police Department wants to use the Scripps Newspaper 
building for Police critical response team training and Scripps Newspaper did request 
proof of insurance and indemnification from the City.  He asked Council to approve the 
request. 
 
There was no one from the public wishing to comment on this item. 
 
Mr. Kramer made a motion to approve the request.  Mr. Old seconded the motion and it 
passed unanimously. 
 

Page 10  CC 9/15/15 
 



Mrs. Turner brought up the proposed Ordinance that the Town of Indian River Shores is 
looking at passing regarding the regulation of electric utilities serving within the Town 
(attached to original minutes).  She asked Mr. Coment if he has seen the Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Coment told her that he just received a copy of it and is now looking at it. 
 
Mrs. Turner read excerpts from the proposed Ordinance.  It states that the Town of Indian 
River Shores would be able to fix the rate of their Electric Utilities services, they could 
require regular financial reports from the Electric Provider, Vero Beach Electric would 
have to apply for electric rate approval, a 1% regulatory fee would be charged, etc.  She 
thought that Vero Beach Electric could not charge different rates to their customers.   
 
Mr. O’Connor explained that in his discussions with Mr. Wright you are able to pass on 
the cost allocation of any type of rate control to the effective parties.  He said if Indian 
River Shores cost them one and a half percent, we can pass that cost on to them.  If it 
costs the City to go through a full blown rate case those rates can be embedded in the 
effective rates for the effective parties.     
 
Mrs. Turner stated that the final public hearing on this proposed Ordinance will be on 
September 25th.  She asked the City Attorney to review the Ordinance and determine 
what the impact will be on the City.  She asked him to give an update at their next 
meeting. 
 
Mr. O’Connor added that legally they are able to charge a 10% surcharge outside their 
City for electric utilities in the State of Florida.  He said there is cost recovery that can be 
applied if there is a cost for the exposure that the City would have. 
 
Mrs. Turner was more concerned that this Ordinance says that the Town has the ability to 
set their own electric rates. 
 
Mrs. Turner commented that she was shocked with the dollar figure that they gave 
Florida Power and Light (FPL) and what the impact would be if they sold their IRS 
interest.  She asked where Mr. Wright and Mr. Harrington came up with the 30-year 
period. 
 
Mr. O’Connor explained that 30-years is a given in the utility industry as an amortization 
period.    
 
Mrs. Turner asked Mr. O’Connor if he knew what the present discount rate is that they 
used.  
 
Mr. O’Connor answered no.  He said that Mr. Wright plans on being at their next Council 
meeting (assuming we have the OUC contract) and he would be able to answer that 
question. 
 

Page 11  CC 9/15/15 
 



Mayor Winger commented that there are two numbers.  He said one given by FPL and 
one given by Mr. Wright and Mr. Harrington. He said you can compare them to apples 
and oranges.  He asked Mr. O’Connor to explain this. 
 
Mr. O’Connor explained it is different if you are just going to go out and purchase 3,400 
meters that are being serviced versus 3,400 meters that are encumbered.  The City has 
power supply contracts that add costs to the transfer of those meters.  That is where the 
issue comes in as to how to transfer.  He firmly believes the $13 million dollar number 
given to the City from FPL was a low number.   
 
Mrs. Turner commented that the number provided by Mr. Wright did not include 
anything for the Power Plant remediation or the liabilities to Stanton I and Stanton II with 
FMPA.  She said if these are in fact liabilities they should have some estimates of these 
numbers. 
 
Mayor Winger stated that Mrs. Turner was referring to the contingent liabilities, which he 
said were included. 
 
Mr. O’Connor agreed they were included with the number that Mr. Wright came up with.   
 
Mayor Winger commented that Mrs. Turner mentioned what happens as far as the Plant 
goes.  He said they do know that Ft. Pierce has spent $11 million dollars so far for the 
remediation of their Plant. 
 
Mayor Winger told Mr. O’Connor that it was important to say again that FPL is dealing 
with apples and the City is dealing with oranges. 
 
Mr. O’Connor stated that it is the value of the meters and the customers attached to those 
meters. 
 
Mrs. Turner pointed out their encumbrances are their FMPA contracts and their failed 
OUC contract that was signed in 2008. 
 
Mrs. Turner brought up All Aboard Florida and said that the City still has not received 
the 90% plans. 
 
Mr. Old commented that the excuse that All Aboard Florida is using is that there is a new 
engineer in this area, which has delayed the process for a couple of months. 
 
Mr. O’Connor added that the County has not received their 90% plans either.  He did 
have concerns about the two (2) crossings that All Aboard Florida keeps saying in their 
Environmental Impact Statement that they will be closed.  He understands that the 
crossings cannot be closed until the City Council requests that they be closed, which has 
not been done. 
 

Page 12  CC 9/15/15 
 



Mrs. Turner stated that comments for the final Environmental Impact Statement can be 
made until September 23rd.  She thanked the County and the public for all they have done 
regarding this project.  She said everyday they can delay this project it is costing All 
Aboard Florida money. 
 
Mr. Lange Sykes commented that they are winding the clocks back to 2008 when they 
hastily signed the contracts with OUC.  He has not heard anyone say that they made a 
good choice when they signed that contract.  He said Mr. Wright, OUC, and FMPA are 
using one of the oldest tricks in the sales book by saying this is a great deal and they are 
lucky to be in this position.  He said the most prudent move for this Council would be to 
really analyze the contract in great detail.  He recommended to Council to wait three (3) 
months before signing this deal.  
 
Mr. Kramer stated that OUC would say thank you very much if they did this because they 
would make more money off of the City.  He recalled that he watched the 2008 City 
Council meeting when the contract was signed.  He said when they signed the OUC 
contract it was being compared to FMPA’s All Requirement Project.  The idea that they 
signed a bad agreement was not really true.  They were coming from FMPA and going to 
OUC.  When the OUC contract was signed they were told utility bills would drop 
between 20% - 30%.  The problem was that fracking came along and the prices of natural 
gas completely reversed and then at the same time the war on coal came about.  He said 
at that time the OUC contract was much better than the All Requirements Project and a 
good choice was made at that time. 
 
Mr. Old added that the economy “tanked” around this time also.  A lot of people at that 
time felt it was a good contract and in this business you should not be making long term 
commitments.   
 
Mayor Winger did not think anyone here wants them to be in this contract and he gave 
the number of what the utility rates were before the contract went into effect.    
 
Mr. Kramer continued by saying that their hands are tied. He said they are still in an 
agreement with FPL and they can’t just sign a new contract.  So right now they are just 
amending the OUC contract.  He said unless they don’t want to do anything until 
December 2016, this is probably about the only thing that they can do at this time. 
 
Mr. Sykes appreciated their comments and urged Council to take time and really look at 
everything in this contract. 
 
10.       CITY COUNCIL MATTERS 
 

A. Old Business 
None 
 

B. New Business 
 

Page 13  CC 9/15/15 
 



None 
 
10. INDIVIDUAL COUNCILMEMBERS’ MATTERS 
 

A. Mayor Richard Winger’s Matters 
1. Correspondence 
2. Committee Reports 
3. Comments 

 
Mayor Winger reminded the public that the wrap-up session for the Arts Village charrette 
is Friday night at 6:00 p.m. at the Hampton Inn. 
 

B. Vice Mayor Jay Kramer’s Matters 
1. Correspondence 
2. Committee Reports 
3. Comments 

 
Mr. Kramer commented that the charrette was an amazing event.  He then reported on the 
recent MPO meeting where they discussed the one-cent sales tax and said that without 
that money a lot of road projects won’t get done.  He urged the community to consider 
voting for the one-cent sales tax.  
 

C. Councilmember Pilar Turner’s Matters 
1. Correspondence 
2. Committee Reports 
3. Comments 

 
Mrs. Turner commented that at the MPO meeting they also talked about the Go-Line bus 
service within the County and they approved their 2015 plan.  She said for the past four 
(4) years the Go-Line has had over a million riders a year.  She said the new bus hub 
construction will begin in January and the bus hub will be located off of 17th Street.  
There also will be additional bus shelters placed throughout the community and one will 
be at the City Marina. 
 
Mrs. Turner reported that there will be a public hearings on the priority of cost feasible 
long term planning for roads and held at various locations.  She said for Vero Beach the 
meeting will be at the County Administration Building on October 1st from 3:30 p.m. to 
5:00 p.m.    
 
Mrs. Turner commended Ms. Lawson for receiving the Certificate of Achievement for 
Excellence in Financial Reporting.  She reminded everyone that United Way Day of 
Caring is this Saturday.   She also told the public about Lagoon Day, which will be held 
at the Environmental Learning Center on Saturday, September 26th from 8:30 a.m. to 
1:00 p.m.  
 

D. Councilmember Amelia Graves’ Matters 

Page 14  CC 9/15/15 
 



1. Correspondence 
2. Committee Reports 
3. Comments 

 
Ms. Graves was absent from tonight’s meeting. 
 

E. Councilmember Randolph Old’s Matters 
1. Correspondence 
2. Committee Reports 
3. Comments 

 
Mr. Old stated at their next meeting he will be discussing with the Council about 
conducting annual reviews of their Charter Officers. 
 
11.        ADJOURNMENT 
 
Tonight’s meeting adjourned at 8:29 p.m.  
 
/tv  

Page 15  CC 9/15/15 
 


	CITY OF VERO BEACH, FLORIDA
	SEPTEMBER 15, 2015  6:00 P.M.     
	REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MINUTES
	CITY HALL, COUNCIL CHAMBERS, VERO BEACH, FLORIDA
	The invocation was given by Pastor Michael Ashburn of Global Fire Church of Vero Beach followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the flag.
	1. CALL TO ORDER
	A. Roll Call
	Mayor Richard Winger, present; Vice Mayor Jay Kramer, present; Councilmember Pilar Turner, present; Councilmember Amelia Graves, excused absence and Councilmember Randy Old, present  Also Present:  James O’Connor, City Manager; Wayne Coment, City Attorney and Tammy Vock, City Clerk
	2.         PRELIMINARY MATTERS
	A. Agenda Additions, Deletions, and Adoption
	Mrs. Tammy Vock, City Clerk, requested that item 9-A) be added to the agenda “Insurance and Indemnification Language for Outside Vendors.”
	Mr. Kramer made a motion to adopt the agenda as amended.  Mr. Old seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.
	B. Proclamations
	None
	C. Public Comment
	1) Mrs. Shotsi LaJoie to discuss proposed boat house site at MacWilliams Park
	Mrs. Shotsi LaJoie gave a Power Point presentation (attached to the original minutes) to discuss the proposed boat house site at MacWilliams Park.
	Mayor Winger commented on the benefits of rowing that have been proven.  He suggested that they use the same lease format that the City used for the Dog Park.
	Mr. James O’Connor, City Manager, agreed that was a good model to follow.  He said in conversations that he has had with The Rowing Club he has told them that the City would put a timeline in the lease (2-3 years) for permits to be issued and construction to begin.  He said that staff wholeheartedly supports this project and feels that this is a good place for it and has no plans to use this piece of property.
	Mr. Winger stated that he also wholeheartedly supports the project.  He noted in the Power Point presentation it talks about a dock.  He hoped that the public would be able to use this dock.  He said since this is public land, he would not want to restrict the public from using it.
	Mr. Chris Ryan, Rowing Club Fundraising Committee member, said that he does not see that being an issue.  
	Mayor Winger had no problem with the City Manager and the City Attorney working with the Rowing Club in coming up with a lease to use this property.
	Mrs. Turner congratulated the Rowing Club for their successful program and what a great asset it is for Vero Beach.  She requested that the City Attorney prepare a lease for the Rowing Club to use this piece of property.
	Mr. Old commented that this was true testimony that the Rowing Club said they were going to put a plan together for this project and they have done it.
	Mr. Kramer was excited to see this project roll out and said it will be fun watching it happen.
	It was the consensus of the Council to negotiate a lease with the Rowing Club.
	2)  Col. Anthony Young to invite everyone to the National POW/MIA Recognition Day on September 18, 2015 at 6:30 p.m.
	Col. Anthony Young invited the Council and the public to attend the National POW/MIA Recognition Day on September 18, 2015 at 6:30 p.m. at Veterans Memorial Island Sanctuary.
	Mr. Richard Gilmore, Mayor of the City of Sebastian Florida, reported that the Indian River County Lagoon Coalition (cities including Vero Beach, Sebastian and Fellsmere) were approved to be members of the Indian River Lagoon Council.  He said the next IRL Council meeting will be held on October 9th and they will have a seat at the table.  He will be the Coalition’s representative attending the meetings and if he cannot make it then Mayor Susan Adams from Fellsmere will attend the meeting and if she cannot make it then Mayor Winger will be asked to attend.  He said that the IRL Council has hired an Executive Director and anticipates only having to have four (4) employees hired to run the Lagoon Council.  They will be discussing how to bring about each project that the different cities in Indian River County want to champion to the Council.
	Mr. Joseph Guffanti talked about the Orlando Utilities Commission (OUC) contract.  He said that he has not read the draft amendment in its entirety but referred to page 3, Article II of the document, which he read. He said anyone in the room could stop him by raising their hand if they feel that he says something that is not true.  He said any reasonable person would conclude that since OUC wants this it is an asset.  His understanding of this contract was that it was going to be retroactive to sometime in the year 2008.  He would then assume that the tendering of the gas entitlement is going to also go back to the year 2008.  He does not see anywhere that this item is extracted from the contract.  He knows of no place in this contract where it says that the City of Vero Beach is not liable for the value that Vero Beach received.  He explained what he was saying is that they have an asset, that goes back eight (8) years.  He asked whatever they benefited from this asset do they have to turn it over to OUC.  He would think that they would have to do that.  He feels that Council should know what this asset is worth and what they are exposed to.  He said this contract is raw garbage and the public is going to suffer if it is approved.
	Ms. Bonnie Dickerson stated that she was attending tonight’s meeting as a representative of a lot of businesses that are located around US1.  She said that there have been influxes of people in this community who are on their streets panhandling.  She has been in touch with the Police Chief, and undercover agents and they have done a wonderful job patrolling this area, but their hands are tied with certain things.  She said that there are a lot of cities that do not allow panhandlers and that is what she would like to see in this City.  She felt with these panhandlers the crime rate in this area is going up.  When the children go back to school they should be able to walk to school safely, which is not possible in this area.  The only news she wants to hear is that Vero Beach is a happy place to live.  She is asking for help because this has escalated to the point where she has to lock her door.  She reiterated that the Police Department is doing a fantastic job, but they are working with limited funds.  She said it was not the homeless she is worried about it is the drug addicts.  She asked Council to please make panhandling illegal.  
	Mr. Old asked why there has been such an influx over the last few weeks.   Ms. Dickerson explained that a lot of things have happened in Ft. Pierce that has moved these people to this area.  
	Mr. O’Connor stated that the Police Chief is aware of the situation and has been working on it.
	Ms. Dickerson commented that the sign holders are getting aggressive.  
	Mr. O’Connor said that staff would look at their Ordinances to see how they can strengthen them.  
	Mr. Ken Daige stated that if there is anything they can do with these panhandlers and have it eliminated that would be helpful.  He agreed there are some individuals that are aggressive and want money.  A lot of these people have mental issues and they are not always nice.  When the Rowing Club project was being discussed Council heard from some nice people.  He was happy to hear that the facility would be open to the public and he liked the idea of using the Dog Park lease as a model.  He expressed that the Dog Park is working.  The organization has met the requirements that the City asked for and the public can use the Park without paying any dues.  Also the lease is not a long lease, but it protects the City.  Mr. Daige brought up the recent charrette that was held on Saturday at the Heritage Center.  He said there were over 100 people that attended.  He thanked the Elected Officials who were at the charrette and said that the people attending appreciated that they stopped by.  The consensus of the charrette is that people are looking for more green space and parking and also that waterfront property is very limited.
	3. CONSENT AGENDA
	1. Regular City Council Minutes – September 1, 2015
	2. Special Call City Council Minutes – September 3, 2015
	3. License Agreement #2015-LA-0258 – Phillip & Allyson Barth – Dock & Boatlift constructed on City-Owned Submerged Lands – 21 Park Avenue
	4. Renewal of City of Vero Beach Health Insurance Plan
	5. Renewal of Annual Service Contract – Advanced Control Services
	6. Emergency Purchase Report – Electric Utility Repairs
	7. Recommendation of Award – Bid 200-15/CSS – Emergency Food Services
	8. License Agreement #2015-LA-0252 – Temporary Placement of Propane Tanks – Blue Agave, LLC – 1979 14th Avenue
	Mrs. Turner pulled item 3-4) off of the consent agenda. 
	Mr. Kramer made a motion to adopt the consent agenda as amended.  Mayor Winger seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.
	Mrs. Turner stated that this item is the renewal of the Vero Beach Health Insurance Plan.  She said the recommendation was to continue with United Healthcare, which is a 4.3% increase.  She asked why they didn’t consider Aetna, which is a 1.8% decrease.
	Mr. O’Connor said because in one year Aetna would increase the premiums by 14.7%.
	Mrs. Turner noted that Cigna was only a 0.7% increase.
	Mr. O’Connor anticipated that if they went with Cigna there also would be a substantial increase next year.  He said if you start changing health insurance carriers every year they will find themselves in a very high cost class.  He felt the 4.3% was a very reasonable increase.  The City’s consultant, who is Willis, recommended that the City stay with United Healthcare.
	Mrs. Turner made a motion to approve the renewal of the City of Vero Beach Health Insurance Plan to United Healthcare.  Mr. Kramer seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.
	4.         PUBLIC HEARINGS     
	(Legislative)
	A) An Ordinance of the City of Vero Beach, Florida, amending the Land Development Regulations Part II of the Code of the City of Vero Beach, relating to Medical Marijuana Dispensaries; Providing for Conflict and Severability; Providing for an Effective Date. – Requested by the Planning and Development Director
	Mayor Winger read the Ordinance by title only.
	Mr. Tim McGarry, Planning and Development Director, was at tonight’s meeting to answer any questions that Council had regarding this Ordinance.
	Mayor Winger opened the public hearing at 7:22 p.m.
	Mr. Ken Daige and Mrs. Debra Daige both requested to speak regarding the medical marijuana dispensaries.  They toured the area to see who was living close to where these dispensaries could be located.  Some of the homes are older and could possibly be eligible to be on the historic register.  There are people that live in area with the M-zoning and the Ordinance states that the medical marijuana dispensary will not be located within 1,000 feet of any school, child daycare facility, public park, or other existing medical marijuana dispensaries or within 500 feet of any residentially zoned property.  Their concern is allowing these dispensaries to go in this close to where someone is living.  These homeowners should be given the same protection as any other person living in a residential district.  
	Mr. Daige commented that in the Ordinance it talks about protecting people.  He spoke about this at the last public hearing that was held and referred to the minutes on page 8, where he read some excerpts on comments that he had made at that meeting.  Also, at that meeting, Mr. McGarry stated that residential dwellings were not allowed in this zoning.  Mr. Daige said that some of the zoning throughout the City has changed.  They (Mr. & Mrs. Daige) showed pictures of different dwellings where people are living in this zoning (on file in the Clerk’s office).  He brought up the POI zoning and said that it has failed in many areas.
	Mrs. Daige expressed that she lives in RM-10/12 zoning, which allows for apartments.  She said there are older homes in her neighborhood where a lot of people have purchased these homes and fixed them up instead of turning them into apartments.  She mentioned that people are starting to go back to the Downtown area and some of these areas are included in the Downtown District.  She brought up the proposed Arts District and commented on how many people are showing an interest in this area.  She continued by doing the slide presentation that showed a lot of homes and an apartment complex where families live.  This apartment complex (Ferns Rooming House) is located right next to the Police Department on 10th Avenue.  They just wanted to make Council aware of what is out there and hoped that they would do all they could for people living in these areas.  From what they have learned about these institutions they have to do everything they can to protect the neighbors.  
	Mrs. Daige expressed to Council that they were not telling Council not to do this.  But, just felt that there has to be a better solution.  She asked that more thought be put into it.  She felt that maybe the facility could be placed in a more assessable area.
	Mayor Winger closed the public hearing at 7:38 p.m., with no one else wishing to be heard.
	Mr. McGarry agreed that there are residents nearby where these dispensaries would be permitted, but he tried to come up with a solution to keep them off of the major traveled roads.  In order for a dispensary to be approved a conditional use would have to be granted and there are a lot of conditions placed on obtaining a conditional use.  
	Mrs. Turner commented that they went through this process over a year ago and by having an Ordinance in place they will be prepared if the State legislature restricts local governments from regulating medical marijuana facilities through its zoning and land use powers.
	Mrs. Turner made a motion to approve the Ordinance.  
	Mr. Kramer asked if notice is given to the area property owners if a dispensary wants to go into their neighborhood.
	Mr. McGarry explained anyone living within 500 feet of the property is notified.  Any applications will also have to go through a quasi-judicial hearing process.  
	Mr. Kramer brought up the apartment complex where children are living.  Mr. McGarry said that would be something to look at during the approval process.
	Mr. McGarry told Council that if they don’t want to move forward on this tonight then he needs some direction on how they want him to proceed.
	Mr. Wayne Coment, City Attorney, explained that dispensaries will be regulated by the State and if the City doesn’t specify an area where they would be allowed then they could open up any place, such as a doctor’s office or pharmacy.  By adopting this Ordinance, it puts the City in a stronger and more favorable position if the State legislature decides to partially or fully vest local zoning ordinances regulating medical marijuana.  He said at least they would be grandfathered in.
	Mayor Winger suggested tabling this Ordinance until their next meeting.  He did question what happens then.  
	Mrs. Turner pointed out that they need to give staff some direction on what they will accept if they table this tonight.
	Mr. Old commented that he was the new guy on the block and not real familiar with all of these zoning issues.  
	Mr. Kramer had a problem with the geographics.  He questioned if there was an area to put these dispensaries that did not involve residential homes.
	Mayor Winger made a motion to table discussion of this Ordinance until their second meeting in October giving staff time to bring other potential solutions forward.  Mr. Old seconded the motion.
	Mr. McGarry stated that he would go back and look for other alternatives.
	The Clerk polled the Council and the motion passed 3-1 with Mr. Old voting yes, Mrs. Turner no, Mr. Kramer yes, and Mayor Winger yes.
	5. RESOLUTIONS (PUBLIC HEARING NOT REQUIRED) 
	A) A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Vero Beach, Indian River County, Florida, expressing support for continuation of the Indian River County Local Government Infrastructure one-cent sales surtax discretionary sales surtax authorized pursuant to Section 212.055, Florida Statutes; Providing for an Effective Date. – Requested by Indian River County
	Mayor Winger read the Resolution by title only.
	Mayor Winger opened the public hearing at 7:46 p.m.
	Mr. Dylan Reinhold, County Attorney, was at tonight’s meeting to talk about the one-cent sales surtax. He explained that the Florida Statutes authorizes a County discretionary sales surtax up to one-cent for a period of up to 15 years, if approved by the voters of the County, for the funding of infrastructure of the County and municipalities within the County.  The voters of Indian River County approved the one-cent discretionary sales surtax for the period of 15 years at a referendum held on March 14, 1989 and in 2002, the voters of Indian River County approved an extension of the one-cent discretionary sales surtax until December 31, 2019.  He said before taking the issue to the voters, the Board of County Commissioners wanted to express their support of extending the tax and also seek support from the municipalities within Indian River County.  He said the County Commission plans to put this item on the November, 2016 ballot.  He was told by Mr. Jason Brown, Indian River County Finance Director, that roughly $2 million dollars has been distributed to the City of Vero Beach for some of their infrastructure projects. He hoped that the City Council would support this Resolution.
	Mayor Winger closed the public hearing at 7:47 p.m., with no one else wishing to be heard.
	Mr. Kramer made a motion to approve the Resolution.  Mayor Winger seconded the motion and it passed 3-1 with Mr. Old voting yes, Mrs. Turner no, Mr. Kramer yes, and Mayor Winger yes.
	B) Resolution of the City Council of the City of Vero Beach, Florida, amending Section 3.11 “Discrimination” of the City of Vero Beach Personnel Rules; Providing for Conflict and Severability; Providing for an Effective Date. – Requested by the Human Resource’s Director
	Mayor Winger read the Resolution by title only.
	Mr. O’Connor reported by passage of this Resolution it will bring their personnel rules in line with the Federal law.
	Mayor Winger opened and closed the public hearing at 7:51 p.m., with no one wishing to be heard.
	Mr. Kramer made a motion to approve the Resolution.  Mrs. Turner seconded the motion and it passed 4-0 with Mr. Old voting yes, Mrs. Turner yes, Mr. Kramer yes, and Mayor Winger yes.
	6.  PUBLIC NOTICE ITEMS
	None
	7.         CITY CLERK’S MATTERS      
	None
	Mrs. Turner brought up the vacancy on the Finance Commission and the Utilities Commission.  Both, Mr. Old and Mayor Winger said that they were working on appointing someone to those positions.  The Clerk briefly went over some of the other vacancies that they have on their other Boards/Commissions.
	8.         CITY MANAGER’S MATTERS
	A) Tentative Agreement between the City of Vero Beach and Teamsters Local Union No. 769 for a Collective Bargaining Agreement
	Mr. Jason Odom, Outside Attorney with Gould, Fennel, and Cooksey, P.A., stated that the Teamsters Union did have a ratification vote on both contracts, one for the Bluecollar Unit and the other for the Clerical Unit.  He is happy to present both contracts to the City Council and urge their approval of them tonight.  He wanted to go over a few of the highlights of the agreements with Council.  He said both contracts will be three (3) year contracts, resulting in “labor peace.”  The most significant strength to these agreements is that the City retains all of its previously achieved economic goals, such as limiting holiday pay, freezing annual and sick leave usage, limiting health and insurance exposure, and perhaps the most important, freezing the defined benefit plan and replacing it with a defined contribution plan.  The City accomplished the 3% pay increase that Council gave direction on.  He recalled that he did come to Council on how this could be allocated, which was accomplished and it amounted to about a $25,000 savings for this fiscal year because the increases do not take effect until January 1, 2016.  He said overall both agreements do maintain all of Council’s goals that they have been looking at over the last couple of years.  He urged Council to support ratification of both contracts. 
	Mayor Winger asked Mr. O’Connor if a vote should be taken on this and does he open the meeting up for public comments.
	Mr. O’Connor agreed that this should be opened up for public comment.  He said this is an item that he is asking Council to vote on.  He noted that this is the first time since he has been employed with the City that they have agreed to a multi-year contract.  He was personally very proud of the City’s Negotiation Team who were able to pull together a three (3) year contract and there was a unanimous vote from the Teamsters on both of these contracts. 
	Mayor Winger asked if there was anyone wishing to speak from the public on this item.  There was no one in the audience wishing to speak on this item.
	Mayor Winger made a motion that both contracts be ratified by the City. Mr. Kramer seconded the motion.
	Mrs. Turner stated that she was happy to see this three year (3) agreement and commended everyone involved in bringing it forward.  However, her objection to this contract is still when they changed to defined contribution they went up to a 9% contribution.  She felt that was too much of a burden placed on their taxpayers so she will not vote in favor of this.
	The motion passed 3-1, with Mrs. Turner voting no.
	Mayor Winger asked Mr. O’Connor with the change in garbage collection that is occurring in Indian River County effective October 1st, will there be any changes for the City.
	Mr. O’Connor explained everything in the County will remain the same except for the singling recycling process.  He said that their residents will be receiving a large bin for their recycling products. The City residents’ garbage pickup day remains the same as it always has been.  
	Mrs. Turner asked Mr. O’Connor to give an update on the stormwater utility.
	Mr. O’Connor reported that the Awarding of the Contract and the Scope of the Contract will be brought to Council at their first meeting in October.
	Mrs. Turner commented on the Electric Optimization Study Report.  She noted that the City received it on September 2nd and it was not distributed to the Council until she made a public request for it.  She said when they started this process of the Optimization Study they were told they would see great savings.  What they are seeing from this study is that they will have to invest a lot more money in order to keep their utilities operating.
	Mr. O’Connor reported that there will be two (2) more reports coming and then in January the consultant will make a formal presentation to the City Council.  Mrs. Turner noted she did not receive a cover memo to the Optimization report and requested it be distributed.
	Mayor Winger asked if there has been a joint Finance and Utilities Commission meeting set to discuss the amended OUC contract.
	Mr. O’Connor stated that if they receive the OUC contract then the joint meeting would be set for October 5th, which is the Monday before the City Council meeting held on Tuesday.  He knows that there has been communication between OUC and Mr. Wright, but they have not received the final contract yet.  He said before the contract comes before the Council, both the Finance and Utilities Commission will have reviewed it. 
	Mrs. Turner asked if the stormwater utility scope of work will go before the Utilities Commission before it comes before the City Council.  Mr. O’Connor said that he would make sure that it does.
	Mr. O’Connor reported that the City will be helping the Veterans Council in an event that they are having at Gifford Park.  He said they have requested permission to use one of the City’s stages.
	It was noted that the City Council Special Call meeting to hear two appeal cases has been set for September 29th at 9:30 a.m.
	9.         CITY ATTORNEY’S MATTERS
	A) Add on Item – Insurance and Indemnification Language for Outside Vendors
	Mr. Coment explained that the Police Department wants to use the Scripps Newspaper building for Police critical response team training and Scripps Newspaper did request proof of insurance and indemnification from the City.  He asked Council to approve the request.
	There was no one from the public wishing to comment on this item.
	Mr. Kramer made a motion to approve the request.  Mr. Old seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.
	Mrs. Turner brought up the proposed Ordinance that the Town of Indian River Shores is looking at passing regarding the regulation of electric utilities serving within the Town (attached to original minutes).  She asked Mr. Coment if he has seen the Ordinance.
	Mr. Coment told her that he just received a copy of it and is now looking at it.
	Mrs. Turner read excerpts from the proposed Ordinance.  It states that the Town of Indian River Shores would be able to fix the rate of their Electric Utilities services, they could require regular financial reports from the Electric Provider, Vero Beach Electric would have to apply for electric rate approval, a 1% regulatory fee would be charged, etc.  She thought that Vero Beach Electric could not charge different rates to their customers.  
	Mr. O’Connor explained that in his discussions with Mr. Wright you are able to pass on the cost allocation of any type of rate control to the effective parties.  He said if Indian River Shores cost them one and a half percent, we can pass that cost on to them.  If it costs the City to go through a full blown rate case those rates can be embedded in the effective rates for the effective parties.    
	Mrs. Turner stated that the final public hearing on this proposed Ordinance will be on September 25th.  She asked the City Attorney to review the Ordinance and determine what the impact will be on the City.  She asked him to give an update at their next meeting.
	Mr. O’Connor added that legally they are able to charge a 10% surcharge outside their City for electric utilities in the State of Florida.  He said there is cost recovery that can be applied if there is a cost for the exposure that the City would have.
	Mrs. Turner was more concerned that this Ordinance says that the Town has the ability to set their own electric rates.
	Mrs. Turner commented that she was shocked with the dollar figure that they gave Florida Power and Light (FPL) and what the impact would be if they sold their IRS interest.  She asked where Mr. Wright and Mr. Harrington came up with the 30-year period.
	Mr. O’Connor explained that 30-years is a given in the utility industry as an amortization period.   
	Mrs. Turner asked Mr. O’Connor if he knew what the present discount rate is that they used. 
	Mr. O’Connor answered no.  He said that Mr. Wright plans on being at their next Council meeting (assuming we have the OUC contract) and he would be able to answer that question.
	Mayor Winger commented that there are two numbers.  He said one given by FPL and one given by Mr. Wright and Mr. Harrington. He said you can compare them to apples and oranges.  He asked Mr. O’Connor to explain this.
	Mr. O’Connor explained it is different if you are just going to go out and purchase 3,400 meters that are being serviced versus 3,400 meters that are encumbered.  The City has power supply contracts that add costs to the transfer of those meters.  That is where the issue comes in as to how to transfer.  He firmly believes the $13 million dollar number given to the City from FPL was a low number.  
	Mrs. Turner commented that the number provided by Mr. Wright did not include anything for the Power Plant remediation or the liabilities to Stanton I and Stanton II with FMPA.  She said if these are in fact liabilities they should have some estimates of these numbers.
	Mayor Winger stated that Mrs. Turner was referring to the contingent liabilities, which he said were included.
	Mr. O’Connor agreed they were included with the number that Mr. Wright came up with.  
	Mayor Winger commented that Mrs. Turner mentioned what happens as far as the Plant goes.  He said they do know that Ft. Pierce has spent $11 million dollars so far for the remediation of their Plant.
	Mayor Winger told Mr. O’Connor that it was important to say again that FPL is dealing with apples and the City is dealing with oranges.
	Mr. O’Connor stated that it is the value of the meters and the customers attached to those meters.
	Mrs. Turner pointed out their encumbrances are their FMPA contracts and their failed OUC contract that was signed in 2008.
	Mrs. Turner brought up All Aboard Florida and said that the City still has not received the 90% plans.
	Mr. Old commented that the excuse that All Aboard Florida is using is that there is a new engineer in this area, which has delayed the process for a couple of months.
	Mr. O’Connor added that the County has not received their 90% plans either.  He did have concerns about the two (2) crossings that All Aboard Florida keeps saying in their Environmental Impact Statement that they will be closed.  He understands that the crossings cannot be closed until the City Council requests that they be closed, which has not been done.
	Mrs. Turner stated that comments for the final Environmental Impact Statement can be made until September 23rd.  She thanked the County and the public for all they have done regarding this project.  She said everyday they can delay this project it is costing All Aboard Florida money.
	Mr. Lange Sykes commented that they are winding the clocks back to 2008 when they hastily signed the contracts with OUC.  He has not heard anyone say that they made a good choice when they signed that contract.  He said Mr. Wright, OUC, and FMPA are using one of the oldest tricks in the sales book by saying this is a great deal and they are lucky to be in this position.  He said the most prudent move for this Council would be to really analyze the contract in great detail.  He recommended to Council to wait three (3) months before signing this deal. 
	Mr. Kramer stated that OUC would say thank you very much if they did this because they would make more money off of the City.  He recalled that he watched the 2008 City Council meeting when the contract was signed.  He said when they signed the OUC contract it was being compared to FMPA’s All Requirement Project.  The idea that they signed a bad agreement was not really true.  They were coming from FMPA and going to OUC.  When the OUC contract was signed they were told utility bills would drop between 20% - 30%.  The problem was that fracking came along and the prices of natural gas completely reversed and then at the same time the war on coal came about.  He said at that time the OUC contract was much better than the All Requirements Project and a good choice was made at that time.
	Mr. Old added that the economy “tanked” around this time also.  A lot of people at that time felt it was a good contract and in this business you should not be making long term commitments.  
	Mayor Winger did not think anyone here wants them to be in this contract and he gave the number of what the utility rates were before the contract went into effect.   
	Mr. Kramer continued by saying that their hands are tied. He said they are still in an agreement with FPL and they can’t just sign a new contract.  So right now they are just amending the OUC contract.  He said unless they don’t want to do anything until December 2016, this is probably about the only thing that they can do at this time.
	Mr. Sykes appreciated their comments and urged Council to take time and really look at everything in this contract.
	10.       CITY COUNCIL MATTERS
	A. Old Business
	None
	B. New Business
	None
	10. INDIVIDUAL COUNCILMEMBERS’ MATTERS
	A. Mayor Richard Winger’s Matters
	1. Correspondence
	2. Committee Reports
	3. Comments
	Mayor Winger reminded the public that the wrap-up session for the Arts Village charrette is Friday night at 6:00 p.m. at the Hampton Inn.
	B. Vice Mayor Jay Kramer’s Matters
	1. Correspondence
	2. Committee Reports
	3. Comments
	Mr. Kramer commented that the charrette was an amazing event.  He then reported on the recent MPO meeting where they discussed the one-cent sales tax and said that without that money a lot of road projects won’t get done.  He urged the community to consider voting for the one-cent sales tax. 
	C. Councilmember Pilar Turner’s Matters
	1. Correspondence
	2. Committee Reports
	3. Comments
	Mrs. Turner commented that at the MPO meeting they also talked about the Go-Line bus service within the County and they approved their 2015 plan.  She said for the past four (4) years the Go-Line has had over a million riders a year.  She said the new bus hub construction will begin in January and the bus hub will be located off of 17th Street.  There also will be additional bus shelters placed throughout the community and one will be at the City Marina.
	Mrs. Turner reported that there will be a public hearings on the priority of cost feasible long term planning for roads and held at various locations.  She said for Vero Beach the meeting will be at the County Administration Building on October 1st from 3:30 p.m. to 5:00 p.m.   
	Mrs. Turner commended Ms. Lawson for receiving the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting.  She reminded everyone that United Way Day of Caring is this Saturday.   She also told the public about Lagoon Day, which will be held at the Environmental Learning Center on Saturday, September 26th from 8:30 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. 
	D. Councilmember Amelia Graves’ Matters
	1. Correspondence
	2. Committee Reports
	3. Comments
	Ms. Graves was absent from tonight’s meeting.
	E. Councilmember Randolph Old’s Matters
	1. Correspondence
	2. Committee Reports
	3. Comments
	Mr. Old stated at their next meeting he will be discussing with the Council about conducting annual reviews of their Charter Officers.
	11.        ADJOURNMENT
	Tonight’s meeting adjourned at 8:29 p.m. 
	/tv 


<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /All
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Gray Gamma 2.2)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.6
  /CompressObjects /All
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket true
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.1000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /UseDeviceIndependentColor
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType true
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo false
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Remove
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile (North America Web/Internet)
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
    /Arial-Black
    /Arial-BlackItalic
    /Arial-BoldItalicMT
    /Arial-BoldMT
    /Arial-ItalicMT
    /ArialMT
    /ArialNarrow
    /ArialNarrow-Bold
    /ArialNarrow-BoldItalic
    /ArialNarrow-Italic
    /CenturyGothic
    /CenturyGothic-Bold
    /CenturyGothic-BoldItalic
    /CenturyGothic-Italic
    /CourierNewPS-BoldItalicMT
    /CourierNewPS-BoldMT
    /CourierNewPS-ItalicMT
    /CourierNewPSMT
    /Georgia
    /Georgia-Bold
    /Georgia-BoldItalic
    /Georgia-Italic
    /Impact
    /LucidaConsole
    /Tahoma
    /Tahoma-Bold
    /TimesNewRomanMT-ExtraBold
    /TimesNewRomanPS-BoldItalicMT
    /TimesNewRomanPS-BoldMT
    /TimesNewRomanPS-ItalicMT
    /TimesNewRomanPSMT
    /Trebuchet-BoldItalic
    /TrebuchetMS
    /TrebuchetMS-Bold
    /TrebuchetMS-Italic
    /Verdana
    /Verdana-Bold
    /Verdana-BoldItalic
    /Verdana-Italic
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 150
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 150
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 150
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 150
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects true
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<


    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e55464e1a65876863768467e5770b548c62535370300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200036002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc666e901a554652d965874ef6768467e5770b548c52175370300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200036002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>



    /HUN <>
    /ITA (Utilizzare queste impostazioni per creare documenti Adobe PDF adatti per visualizzare e stampare documenti aziendali in modo affidabile. I documenti PDF creati possono essere aperti con Acrobat e Adobe Reader 6.0 e versioni successive.)
    /JPN <>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020be44c988b2c8c2a40020bb38c11cb97c0020c548c815c801c73cb85c0020bcf4ace00020c778c1c4d558b2940020b3700020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200036002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken waarmee zakelijke documenten betrouwbaar kunnen worden weergegeven en afgedrukt. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 6.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>


    /SKY <>

    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>

    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents suitable for reliable viewing and printing of business documents.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 6.0 and later.)
  >>
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [600 600]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


